
A18*t*Y *Srrr[TY *U$*ilE$,*
DEIJELOPNNEI{T CORPIORATIOil

,i:,;L 
*il#*ffi 

8-ffi1&N trUfq #
FJiJAIVCING TO FIJEL SUSJT{f55 6ftOI,YB{

Albany County Business Development Corporation

Board of Directors Meeting
Virtual - Microsoft Teams

March 17,2022
B:30 AM

AGENDA

Welcome

1. Review of February 1,7 ,2022 Minutes Allen Maikels

2. Presentation of 2021Audit Kevin Testo, Auditor

3. Review of January 2022 Financials Amy Thompson &
Allen Maikels

4. Review of Public Authority Documents
. Board Evaluation Summary
o Whistleblower Policy
o Conflict of lnterest Policy
o Code of Ethic Policy
o Procurement Guidelines and Property

Disposition & Acquisition Polices

Allen Maikels

5. Other Business

6. Adjournment Allen Maikels



ALB*$IY GSUNTY S$$HN$$
DEVELOP MENT CORFORATION

,eL Thtrf$ !."*fl-&,\ flilh;r]
f,fvAf,/CIIVG IA FUEL 8USiln €SS GROl,VTll

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
January 20,2022

DIRECTORS PRESENT

COUNSEL PRESENT

AACA STAFF PRESENT

GUEST PRESENT Caitlin O'Brien, representing Albany County Legislature Chairman- Andrew Joyce

Amy Thompson, CFO-For HirelBST

Mr. Maikels called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m

Mr. Maikels presented the minutes from the January 20,2022, meeting. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve, Mr. Stone

seconded, and all were in favor.

Ms. Thompson presented December 31,,2O2L Financials. Mr. Pryor motioned to approve, Ms. Lansing seconded, and all

were in favor.

Mr. Maikels presented the 3'd and 4th Quarter Alliance Voucher. Ms. Lansing motioned to approve, Mr. Stone seconded,

and allwere in favor.

Mr. Maikels presented the following as they pertain to the Authorities Budget Office annual requirements:
Acknowledgment of Fiduciary Duty,

Review/Approve Mission Statement & Annual Performance Measurement & Report,

Provided Confidential Board Evaluation Forms,

Confirmed required ABO Board Member Training status,

Mr. Pryor motioned to approve, Mr. Stone seconded, and all were in favor,.

Mr. Maikels reviewed the lnvestment Policy and lnvestment Portfolio,
Mr. Stone motioned to approve, Ms. Lansing seconded, and allwere in favor

Mr. Stone motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:54 a.m., Ms. Lansing seconded, and all were in favor

Respectfully submitted,

Al len Maikels, Secretary/Treasurer

DIRECTORS ABSENT

Allen Maikels, Marcus Pryor, Pamela Lansing, Jeffrey Stone

Andrew Joyce, George Penn

Madeline Kauffman

Kevin O'Connor, Melanie LaRose, Luc Rogers



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Financial Statements and Req uired Reports
Under the Uniform Guidance as of

December 31,2021
Together with

lndependent Aud itor's Report



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

March _,2022

To the Board of Directors of
Albany County Business Development Corporation

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Albany County
Business Development Corporation (a New York not-for-profit organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31 ,2021, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Albany ness Development
Corporatron as of December 31 ,2021, and the its net assets and its

accounting principlescash flows for the year then ended in
generally accepted rn the United States of

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit rn accordance with auditing standards generally
acceplec rn the United States of America and the standards applicable to
flnanc al audits contained tn Government Auditing Slandards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further cjescribed in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Frnancral Statements section of our repofi. We are required to be
rndependent of Albany County Business Development Corporation and to meet
out- other ethical responsib liiies in accordance with the relevant ethical
requtrements relating to our audit. lVe belleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained rs sufflcient and appropriale to provtde a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparatron and fair presentation of the
financial statements n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, and for the design implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of flnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

ln preparing the flnancial statements, management is required to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Albany County Business Development Corporation's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

(Continued)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

. Exercise professional ludgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error and desrgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examin ng cn a test basis evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropnate rn the c rcumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness cf Albany County Busness Development Corporation's
internal control. Accordingly no such oprnion :s expressed

Evaluate the appropriateness of acco\.rnt:ng polrc es used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by n'ranagenient as lvell as evaluate the overall
presentation of the flnancial staternenis.

Conclude whether, in our judgment there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantral doubt about Albany County Business Development
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Report on Summarized Comparative lnformation
We have previously audited Albany County Business Development Corporation's 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodifled audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated March 18,2021. ln our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31,2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

(Continued)

a

a

a



Other Matters
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenfs, Cosf
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required parl of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
matenal respects in relation to the flnancial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated ltlarch

2022 on our consideration of Albany County Business Development Corporation's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Albany County
Business Development Corporation's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audrt performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in

considering Albany County Business Development Corporation's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

2021 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Operating cash
Restricted cash
Accrued interest receivable
Current portion of loans receivable. net

$ 21,357
7,037,889

32,262
3,1'16,250

$ 101,995
6,034,512

67,472
2,680,794

Total current assets 10,207,758 8 884 773

LONG-TERM PORTION OF LOANS RECEIVABLE, net 9,318,203 13 060 648

$ 19,525,961 $ 21,945,421

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIESI
Due to The Chamber
Due to The Alliance
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

$ 8,390 $
121,976

5,277

1A7,797

9,758

Total current liabilities 135 643 117 555

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

23,919
19,366,399

10,419
21 817 447

Total net assets 19,390,318 21 827 866

$ 19,525,961 $ 21,945,421

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
1



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020\

2021 2020
Without Donor

Restrictions
With Donor
Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE;
Grant income
Loan interest earned
Recovery of bad debt
Bank interest
lnvestment income
Application fees
Recovered legal and late fees
Net assets released from restrictions

$ $ 1,e00,875
433,159
107,822

2,332

$ 1,900,875
433,159
107,822

2,332

$ 2,885,275
396,367

13,500 3,500
80

11,715
9,523
2,500

4080
4,895,316 4

Total support and revenue 4,908,816 2,457,768 3,305,420

EXPENSES:
Program
lVlanagement and general

297.169
5 5.34 0

297,169
55,340

279.895
63,218

Total expenses 352.509 352,509 343 113

OPERATING CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 4 556.307 (2 451.048) 2,962,307

OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Transfer of assets to The Chamber 6 542.847\ \4,542 807)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - beginning of year

13,500

10,419

\2.451.048) \2 437 548)

21.827,866

2,962,307

18,865,55921.81 t.11 /

NET ASSETS - end of year s 23.919 S 19 366.399 s 19,390,318 $ 21 ,827 ,866

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
2

2,105,259



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

2021 2020
Program
Services

General and
Administrative Total Total

Agency fees
Professional fees
Bad debt expense
Application fees
lnsurance
Other expenses

$ 218,176
65,493

$ 54,544 $ 272,720
65,493

$ 278,543
44,270
15,585
2,000
2,679

36

13,500 13,500

796 796

$ 297,169 $ SS,a+O $ 352,509 $ 343,113

tu*-
"#

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
a



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31,2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

2021 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERAT]NG ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash flow from operating activities:
Recovery of bad debt
Unrealized and realized gains on investments
Bad debt expense
Changes in:

Accrued interest receivable
Due to The Chamber
Due to The Alliance
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

$ (2,437,548) $ 2,e62,307

(107,822)
(e,523)
15,585

35.210
(99,407)
121.976

(4.481)

(36,736)
57,506

3d*
q\

308

Net cash flow from operating activities

g'

(2,492.072) 2,989,447
1,1

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sale of investments "rd

$

\

Principal collected on loans receivable
Disbursements of loans receivable

Net cash flow from investing activities

CHANGE IN OPERATING AND RESTRICTED CASH

6 171 .811
(2,78,09!)

1.533,847
2.108,477

(6 564,3s7)

3.414.811 (2.922,013)

922.739

6.136.507

67.434

OPERATING AND RESTRICTED CASH - beginning of year

OPERATING AND RESTRICTED CASH - end of year

6 069 073

$___z jl92l9. $ 6,136,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
4



1. THE ORGANIZATION

2.

The Albany County Business Development Corporation (ACBDC) was incorporated under the
New York State Not-For-Profit Corporation Law on September 16, 1994. ACBDC was
organized to promote economic growth and business retention in Albany County by offering
financing through the Al Tech Revolving Loan Fund and the Capital Region Advancement
Fund. The Al Tech Loan Fund offers economic development financing at competitive interest
rates to supplement traditional bank lending to businesses which demonstrate strong
possibilities for groMh real property improvement, increased employment and retention of
employment in the county. The Capital Region Advancement Fund was established to alleviate
sudden and severe economic drslocation caused by the coronavirus (COVID-l9) pandemic, to
provide permanent resources to support economic resiliency, and to further the long-term
economic adjustment oblectives of eligible businesses.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

Basis of Accounting
The accompanying flnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted n the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financral statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates anc assumptlons that affect the amounts reported in the flnancial
statements and accompany ng nctes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Financial lnformation
The financial statements inciude prior-year summarized information in total but not by net
asset class or functional expense category Such information does not include sufficient detail
to constitute a presentatron in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly such information
should be read in conjunction wrth the ACBDCs flnancial statements for the year ended
December 31,2020. from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Restricted Cash
Cash includes bank demand deposit accounts. ACBDC's cash balances may at times exceed
federally insured limits. ACBDC has not experienced any losses in these accounts and
believes that it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to cash.

Restricted cash consists of amounts restricted to provide financing through the Al Tech
Revolving Loan Fund.

5

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2021



2. SUMMARY OF AGCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Gash and Restricted Cash (Gontinued)
Cash and restricted cash, as stated on the accompanying financialstatements, were as follows
at December 31:

2021 2020

assessment of the debtor s flnancial condition a
loans was S88 594 and S1 96 416 at December 3

101,995

6,034,512

off. The allowance for uncollectible
1 and 2020, respectively

Operating cash

Restricted cash

$ 21,357

7,037,889
$

$7, 059,246 $__-6,199,592

Loans Receivable
Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, less an allowance loans.

the life
history

Loans receivable consist of interest bearing loans payable in month ments over
of the loan, Loans receivable are periodically reviewed for col
and current economic conditions.

on past

A loan rs considered impaired when contractual obl than 30 days past due
and it is probable that the ACBDC will be unable to col scheduled principal payments.
After all collection efforts are exhausted, any uncollectible based upon an

Net Assets
Net assets without donor restrictions include operating resources, which are available for the
support of ACBDC s operating activittes.

Net assets with donor restrjcticns to be held in perpetuity include those loan funds that have
been granted forthe purpose of providing financing to small and medium sized businesses.

Net assets with donor r-estrictions that are subject to time or purpose restrictions primarily
include interest earned on the loans to those businesses. Net assets with donor restrictions
are released and reclassifled to net assets wrthout restrictions. as ACBDC's administration and
overhead costs are expensed ACBDC has determined that all grant funds meet the criteria to
be accounted for as contributions with donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition
ACBDC receives substantrally all of its revenue from interest income generated per the
outstanding loans receivable as well as investments held. lnterest income on loans is
recorded when monthly payments are due. Accrued interest is recorded at period end to
record interest that has been earned but not paid per the terms of the loan agreements.
lnterest income generated from investments is recorded when received.

Grant income from loan funds is recognized as an addition to net assets with donor restrictions
when individual loans are approved in accordance with the grant funding requirements.

Allocation of Certain Expenses
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or
more programs or supporting functions. ACBDC allocates a portion of the agency fee to
program or management and general based on where time and efforts are made, and benefit
received. Other expenses are charged to program expense as they relate directly to the
program services.

6



2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxes
ACBDC is a not-for-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(a) of
the lnternal Revenue Code.

3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

ACBDC has the following liquid resources available to meet cash needs for general
expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position date:

2021 2A2A
Financial assets, at period end:

Operating cash
Restricted cash
Accrued interest receivable

$ 21 $ 101 995
6.034 512

67 ,472
2 680,794

7,

Current portion of loans receivable, net

,758 8.884 773

0,154,139) (8 71 s 306)

53 619 S 169 467

cash balances to meet its
loan receivables to meet its

4.

Loans receivable consist of interest bearing notes and are payable in monthly installments
over the life of the loan. The loans receivable balance is comprised of 61 and 66 loans at
December 31,2021 and 2020 respectively and consists of the following,

2021 2020

Loans receivable

Less: Allowance for uncollectible loans
$ 12,523,047 $ 15 937,858

(88,5e4) (1e6,416)

$ 12,434,453 $ 15, 741,442

7

Less: Current assets subject to satisfaction of restrictions

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditure within one year

future lending demands.



4. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loans receivable mature in the years ended December 31

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

Total Past Due

3,'1 16,159
1,637,250
'1,720,969

2,624393
556,169

2, 872,107

$__12,523p47_

The unpaid prrncipal balance of impaired loans totaled $25,980 at
was 100ozo allowed fo'

The performance and credit quality of the loans receivable
analyzing the age of the loans receivable as determined
payment is past due The following table presents the
by the past due status at December 31,2021'.

30-59 days 6C-89 days Greater than 90

31.2021 and

is also monitored by
of trme recorded

portfolio summarized

Total Gross Loans
Receivablepast due ptSr uutr days past due Current

Q S $ 25,980 $ 25,980 $ 12,497,067 $ 12,523 047

5. CONTRACTED SERVICES

ln orderto accompltsh ACBDCs purpose of furthering economic development in the County of
Albany (the County,) ACBDC i,icrked closely with the Capital Region Chamber of Commerce,
lnc. (the Chamber'r through June 30 2021. The Chamber in return provided staff to the
ACBDC to fulflll its mission ACBDC reimbursed the Chamber for administrative costs of
$150.744 and 5278 543 Curlng lhe years ended December 31 2021 and 2020. respectively.
Additionally at December 3'1 2A21 and 202a. ACBDC owed the Chamber 58.390 and
$50,291, respectively.

Effective July 1 , 2021 ACBDC contracted with Advance Albany County Alltance Local
Development Corporation (the Alliance) to serve as its agent. The Alliance now provides staff
to the ACBDC to fulfill its mission At December 31. 2021, ACBDC owed the Alliance
$121,976 for certain administrative costs. Collectively. these costs are recorded as agency
fees on the accompanying Statement of Functional Expenses.

6. TRANSFER OF ASSETS TO THE CHAMBER

During 2020, ACBDC received grant funding to establish the CARES Act Revolving Loan Fund
(CRAF). The total CRAF grant awarded amounted to $8,755,500. As of December 31, 2021,
ACBDC had vouchered and received $4,212,693 of this funding for approved loans. Effective
June 30, 2021, lhe CRAF grant was transferred to The Chamber and ACBDC transferred the
respective loans funds ($4,427,617) and cash ($115,190) to the Chamber. At this time,
approximately $4.5 million was also released from restrictions, as ACBDC no longer had the
obligation to meet the grantor's requirements.

8



7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

ACBDC has approved and committed an additional $750,000 of loans to be funded by the AI
Tech Revolving Loan Fund at December 31,2021.

Expenditures are subject to audit by the funding agency or by their designee. Such audits
could lead to a request for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed
under the terms of the grant. Management believes that such disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial.

The United States is presently in the midst of a national health emergency related to a virus,
commonly known as Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19). The overall consequences of COVID -
19 on a national, regional and local level are unknown, but it has the potential to result in a
significant economic impact. The impact of this situation on ACBDC and its future results and
financial position is not presently determinable

fl#,
"t\*l8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS \.

ut?*,,th

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March _, 2422,
financial statements were available to be issued.

which is the date the

I



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDER,AL AWARDS
FOR YEAR

Federal Granlorl
Pass-Through Grantor/

Proqram Title

Federal
CFDA

Number
Federal

Expenditures

Department of Commerce/
Economic Development Administrationi

Economic Adjustment Assistance 11.307 $ 19,899,945

Total Department of Commerce 19,899,945

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

-&-
.-,tr
,,lp*

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
10

$___l-9,899p€



1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Albany County Business Development Corporation (ACBDC) for the year ended
December 31,2021. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as
federal awards passed through other government agencies, are included in the schedule.

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Cosf
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, mounts presented
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in of the basic
financial statements.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual
basrs of account ng usec by ACBDC to repon to the federal government.

The amount of federal expendilures s computed as deflned in the Depaftment of Commerce
Economic Development Revolvrng Loan Fund (RLF) Guidelines. The guidelines define current
year expenditures. as the grantee s fiscal year end ng balance of outstanding loans, plus cash
and investment balances the amount of RLF income earned. and the amount expended on
eligible admintstrative costs during the fiscal year Total expenditures at December 31,2021
were calculated as follows

Balance of RLF pnncipal outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
Restricted cash balance in the RLF at the end of the flscal year
Unpaid principal of loans written off during the fiscal year
Administrative expenses paid out of RLF during the fiscal year

$12.523.047
7.037 889

339,009

Federal share of the RLF $19,899.945

3. FEDERAL LOANS AND LOAN GUARANTEES

The ACBDC had no federal loans or loan guarantees outstanding as of December 31,2021

4. INSURANCE

The ACBDC did not padicipate in any federal insurance programs for the year ended
December 31,2021.

The ACBDC did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

11

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
DECEMBER 31,2021

5. DE MINIMIS COST RATE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING SIANDARDS

March _ 2022

To the Board of Directors of
Aloany County Business Development Corporation

lVe iave audlted in accordance with the aud generally accepted
n the United States of America and the to financial audits
contained n Government Auditing by the Comptroller General

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit of the flnancial statements, we considered
ACBDC s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing aud t procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ACBDC's internal
control. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
ACBDC s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a
timely basis. A matenal weakness is a deflciency, or a combination of
deficiencies. in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's flnancial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

(Continued)
12



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOYERNMENT AUDITING
STAA'DARDS
(Continued)

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting (Continued)
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether ACBDC's fi are free

of laws,
rect and

from material misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with provisions
regulations. contracts. and grant agreements, noncompliance with have a di
materral effect on the flnancial statements. However, providing an on comp liance with those
provisrons was not an oblective of our audit. and accordingly, express such an opinion
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of matters that are required
to be repofted under Government Auditing Sfandards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this repod is solely lo describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
complrance and the results of that testlng. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on con.rplance This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance wilh Government Audittng Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly ihrs commun cation is not suitable for any other purpose.

13



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

f\Iarch _,2022

To the Board of Directors of
AIbany County Business Development

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
We have audited Albany County Business
compliance with the types of compliance

Corporation's (ACBDC)
described in lhe OMB

Compliance Supplement that could have and material effect on ACBDC's
major federal program for the year
federal program is identifled in the

31, 2021. ACBDC's major
of auditor's results section of the

accompanying schedule of fi uestioned costs.

M a n ag e m enf 's Respons i bi I ity
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes. regulations. and
the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to tts federal programs.

Au dito r's Responsibi I ity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of ACBDC's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to frnancial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audrt requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Admintstrative Requtremenfs, Cost Pnncifles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Avtards (Uniform Guidance).Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
ma.1or federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about ACBDC's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basts for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal programs. However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination of ACBDC's compliance.

(Continued)
14



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON GOMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER GOMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE
(Continued)

Opinion on Major Federal Program
ln our opinion, ACBDC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended December 31,2021.

Report on lnternal Control Over Compliance
Management of ACBDC is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's control over

on each majorcompliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
federal program to determtne the auditing procedures that are circumstances for
the purpose of expressrng an opinion on compliance for each major ram and to test and
repofi on internal control over compliance in accordance with the but not for the
purpose of expressing an op n on on the effectiveness of control over compliance.
Accordingly. u;e do not express an optnion on the
over compliance.

Organization's internal control

when theA deficiency in rnternal control over compliance exists design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allor.; management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions lo preveni or detect and correct, noncomplrance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal prcgran-r or a trmely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deflciency' or ccmb'nation of deficiencies. in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable pcss bliify that materral noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federai program i,'il nct be prer,,enied. or detected and corrected. on a timely basis.
A significant deftciency in internai canlra) o,ter compliance is a deficiency or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control o'rer compiiance,,vith a lype of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material ,,veakness ;n internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attentton by ihose charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal controi over compliance v/as for the limited purpose described in the
firstparagraph of this section and was not designed to rdentrfy all deflciencies in internalcontrolover
compliance that might be material weaknesses or signiflcant deflciencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, materialweaknesses may exist that have not been identtfled.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testtng based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

15



SECTION 1 . SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financialsfafemenfs.

Type of auditor's repoft issued on whether the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

lnternal control over flnancial reporting

. Materialweakness(es)identified?

. Significant deflciencies identified that
are not consrdered to be material
weakness(es)?

. Noncompliance material to flnancial statements noted?

11.307

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee:

(Continued)
16

_ Yes

_ Yes

_ Yes

Unmodified

x Yes

x None reported

xNo

NoX

FederalAwards

lnternal control over the ma1or programs.

. Materialweakness(es) identified?

. Significant deflciencies identifled that
are not considered to be material
weakness(es)?

Yes x No

Yes x None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for the major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance Yes x No

ldentification of the major progrars

CFDA Number Name of Federal Proqram or Cluster

Economic Adj ustment Assistance

,*squ

,tl "'.' - /
,sf

,- tn
Jr

. ar:.. 
"i'

$750,000

No

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
DECEMBER 31"2021



ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Gontinued)
DECEMBER 31.2O2'I

Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended December 31,2A21.

Section 3 - Federal Award Findings and questioned Gosts

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs for the year ended December 31,2021

Section 4 - Prior Year Findings, Questioned Gosts and Recommendatioqt -
.r"'"1d.,o'

There were no federal award findings, questioned costs or recommendatiobs"fgf the year ended
December 31,2020. *,. ',

o 
ui.I,p'**

,",i"t4

'1.,.i"

17



Albany County Business Development Gorporation
Statement of Net Position

As of January 31,2O22

Total

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Restricted Cash

10220. M&T MM 3324 ALTECH ACBDC

10250 - M&T 4113 Al Tech Operating

Total Restricted Cash

Unrestricted Cash

10210 - M&T ACBDC Corp Checking 4105

10255 - M&T 3994 CRAF Operating

Total Unrestricted cash

Total Bank Accounts

Accounts Receivable

146,l5 - Loans Receivable-Al Tech LT

14620 - Bad Debt Allowance

15150 - Accrued Loan lnterest

Total Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

16000 - Furniture & Fixtures

16999 - Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

't -201 50 - Accrued Expenses

20015 - Deferred Loan lnterest

20050 - Due to the Chamber

2005'l - Due to Advance Albany Co Alliance

Total Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position

28615 - Trust Assets

30000 - Net Assets

Retained Earnings

Net Operating Revenues

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION

4,513,981.43

2,669,426.84

s 7,183,408.27

21,354.30

3.00

$ 21.357 3A

$ 7,204.765.57

12,403,843.61

-88,594.00

32,262.00

12,347 ,511.61

19,552,277.18

6,588.00

-6,588 00

0.00

19,552,277.18

5.000 00

277.00

2.74

141.776.33

147,056.O7

147,056.07

147,056.07

15,650,961 .00

6,1 76,905.00

-2,437,548.24

14,903.35

19,405,221.11

19,552,277.18

***These financial statements omit the statement of cash flow and substantially all disclosures required by US GAAP.

They have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation agreement, and therefore no assurance is provided on them.**

$

$

$

$

$



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

January 2O22

Total

Operating Revenues

44000 - Bank lnterest

44050 - Loan lnterest Earned

Total Operating Revenues

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

50035 - Agency Fee

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income

Change in Net Position

99.47

34,604.15

$ 34,703.62

$ 34,703.62

19,800.27

$ 19,800.27

S 14,903.35

5 14,903.35

Net Position (Beginning of Period)

Net Position (End of Period)

1 9,390,318

19,405,221

"*"These financial statements omit the statement of cash flow and substantially all disclosures required by US GAAP.

They have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation agreement. and therefore no assurance is provided on them..*.



Albany County Business Development Corporation
Budget vs. Actuals:2A22 Budget - FY22 P&L

January 2022

Actual Budget

Operating Revenues

41000 - Application Fees

214000 - Bank lnterest

44050 - Loan lnterest Earned

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

50035 - Agency Fee

Bad Debt Writeoff

Total Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position

000

99.47

34.604. 1 5

0.00

325.00

000

(225.53)

2,104.15

0.00%

30.61%

106.470k32,500.00

$ 34,703.62 $ 32,825.00 $ 1,878.62 105.72o/o

19.800 27

0.00

25,000.00

0.00

(5,1 ee.73) 79 20%

o.o00k0.00

$ 19.800.27 $ 25,000.00 -$ 5,199.73 79.20%

$ 14.903.35 $ 7,825.00 $ 7,078.35 190.46%

"**These financial statements omit the statement of cash flow and substantially all disclosures required by US GAAP.

They have not been subjected to an audit. review or compilation agreement, and therefore no assurance is provided on them.***

BudgetVariance % of Budget



Criteria Aqree
Somewhat

Aqree
Somewhat
Disaqree Disagree

# # # #
Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority. Ip
The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission. Io
Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

\.g
The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually. tp
The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishinq its mission. \.g
The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence or self-
interest. \,
lndividual Board members communicate
effectrvely with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues t,
Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority's programs, flnancial statements,
reportinq requirements. and other transactions. \,
The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the rnformation being
oresented is accurate and complete.

l.o

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law. t,
Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members. \.0
Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

l.p
lndividual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

t,
The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
settin g performance expectations and
reviewi nq performance annually.

t,
The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

l,
Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work resDectfullv with each other. Io

Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Name of Authority:

Date Completed:

Cbrgcrehcn



At*AfiY S&ililrTY St $${*SS
sut ELor nilEilT c&fi Ps$Ailof{

,-&"tTHilidf,*q.,,: i , i'.
silvd,vct (s rs fr.rgl 8us,ilEss GRowrH

Whistleblower Policy

Every member of the Board of Directors of the Albany County Business Development Corporation
(ACBDC), and all employees of the Advance Albany County Alliance, LDC (Alliance) acting on behalf of

the ACBDC and the Alliance under an Agency Agreement by and between the ACBDC and the Alliance, in

the performance of their respective duties, shall conduct themselves with honesty and integrity and

observe the highest standard of business and personal ethics as se forth in the ACBDC Code of Ethics

(Code).

Each member, officer or empioyee is responsib e to report any violation of the Code (whether suspected

or known)to the ACBDC Board Chairoerson (ACBDC Chair). ln the eventthe suspected or known

violation involves the ACBDC Board Clair', the report of such violation shall be made to counselof the

ACBDC. Reports of violations will be kept confidentialto the extent possible.

No individual, regardless of their position with the ACBDC, rvill be subjectto any retaliation for making a

good faith claim, and any member, officer or empioyee who chooses to retaliate against someone who

has reported a violatron shali be subject to disciplinary action, which may include (a) in the case of an

employee of the Alliance, removalfrom service to the ACBDC, and (b) in the case of an ACBDC Board

member, removalfrom the Board in accordance with the by-laws of the ACBDC. Any claim of retaliation

will be taken and treated seriously, and irrespective of the outcome of the initialcomplaint, will be

treated as a separate offense.

The ACBDC Board Chair is responsible for immediately forwarding any claim to the ACBDC's corporate

counsel, who shall investigate the claim in a timely manner and report the results and a

recommendation for handling to the ACBDC Board Chair (or if the suspected or known violation involves

the Board Chair, then the Vice-Chairperson or Treasurer of the ACBDC Board, as appropriate in the best

judgement of counsel.

ln the event any member, officer or employee believes in good faith that disclosing information within

the ACBDC as set forth above would likely subject such person to adverse action or be wholly
ineffective, such individual may instead disclose the information to the New York State Public

Authorities Budget Office at 1(800) 560-1770.

ACBDC shall not fire, discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass or discriminate against a member,

officer or employee because of such member's, officer's or employee's role as a whistleblower, insofar

as the actions taken by such member, officer, or employee are legal.



ALSAfi Y *OUI{TY BU$Ifi E$S
DEVELOP MET{T CORPO RATIO N

&L "fl##F{ L*&it $ i"it1.iil}

ALBANY COU NTY BUSI N ESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Authority board members and employees shall be provided with this Conflict of lnterest Policy

upon commencement of employment or appointment and required to acknowledge that they
have read, understand and are in compliance with the terms of the policy. Board members and

employees should review on an ongoing basis circumstance that constitute a conflict of interest
or the appearance of a conflict of interest, abide by this policy and seek guidance when

necessary and appropriate. This policy is intended to supplement, but not replace, any

applicable state and federal laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to public authorities.

Conflicts of lnterest: A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or
personal interests of a director or employee come into actualor perceived conflictwith their
duties and responsibilities with the Authority. Perceived conflicts of interest are situations
where there is the appearance that a board member andlor employee can personally benefit
from actions or decisions made in their official capacity, or where a board member or employee

may be influenced to act in a manner that does not represent the best interests of the
authority. The perception of a conflict may occur if circumstances would suggest to a

reasonable person that a board member may have a conflict. The appearance of a conflict and

an actual conflict should be treated in the same mannerforthe purposes of this Policy.

Board members and employees must conduct themselves at all times in a manner that avoids

any appearance that they can be improperly or unduly influenced, that they could be affected
by the position of or relationship with any other party, or that they are acting in violation of
their public trust. While it is not possible to describe or anticipate allthe circumstances that
might involve a conflict of interest, a conflict of interest typically arises whenever a director or
employee has or will have:

E A financial or personal interest in any person, firm, corporation or association which

has or will have a transaction, agreement or any other arrangement in which the authority
participates.

E The ability to use his or her position, confidential information or the assets of the
authority, to his or her personal advantage.

E Solicited or accepted a gift of any amount under circumstances in which it could

reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to influence him/her, or could reasonably be

expected to influence him/her, in the performance of his/her official duties or was intended as

a reward for any action on hislher part.

E Any other circumstance that may or appear to make it difficult for the board member
or employee to exercise independent judgment and properly exercise his or her official duties.



Outside Ennplovment of Autho : No board member or employee may engage in

outside employment if such employment interferes with his/her ability to properly exercise his

or her official duties with the authority.

PROCEDURES

Duty to Disclose: All material facts related to the conflicts of interest (including the nature of
the interest and information about the conflicting transaction) shall be disclosed in good faith
and in writing to the Governance Committee and/or the Ethics Officer. Such written disclosure
shall be made part of the official record of the proceedings of the Authority.

Determining Whether a Conflict of lnterest Exists: The Governance Committee and/or Ethics

Officer shall advise the individual who appears to have a conflict of interest how to proceed.

The Governance Committee and/or Ethics Officer should seek guidance from counsel or New
York State agencies, such as the Authorities Budget Office, when dealing with cases where they
are unsure of what to do.

Recusal and Abstention: No board member or employee may participate in any decision ortake
any official action with respect to any matter requiring the exercise of discretion, including
discussing the matter and voting, when he or she knows or has reason to know that the action
could confer a direct or indirect financial or material benefit on himself or herself, a relative, or
any organization in which he or she is deemed to have an interest. Board members and

employees must recuse themselves from deliberations, votes, or internal discussion on matters
relating to any organization, entity or indrvidual where their impartiality in the deliberation or
vote might be reasonably questioned and are prohibited from attemptingto influence other
board members or employees in the deliberation and voting on the matter.

Records of Conflicts of lnterest: The minutes of the a uthority's meetings during which a

perceived or actual conflict of interest is disclosed or discussed shall reflect the name of the
interested person, the nature of the conflict, and a description of how the conflict was resolved

Reporting of Violations: Board members and employees should promptly report any violations
of this policy to his or her supervisor, or to the Authority's ethics officer, general counsel or
human resources representative in accordance with the Authority's Whistleblower Policy and

Procedures.

Penalties: Any director or employee that fails to comply with this policy may be penalized in the
manner provided for in law, rules or regulations.



Albanv Countv Business DeveloDment Corooration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONFLICT OF INTEREST D ISCLOS U RE STATEMENT

This Disclosure Statement shall be completed and submitted by all Directors as soon as

reasonably practicable following appointment, and on an annual periodicity during their term
on the Board.

Pursuant to the purposes and intent of the policy on conflicts of interest requiring disclosure of
certain interests, adopted by the Board of Directors, a copy of which has been furnished to me,

I hereby state that I have read and understand the policy and agree to comply with the policy. I

understand that the policy applies to all committees and subcommittees having board-

delegated powers. I understand that the Corporation is a Public Authority and a charitable
organization that must engage primarily in activities that accomplish one or more of its tax-

exempt purposes to maintain its tax-exempt status. I hereby state that I and/or members of my
immediate family have no affiliations or interests and have taken part in no transaction which,
when considered in conjunction with my relation to the Corporation, might constitute a conflict
of interest, EXCEPT as is noted below. (lf none, write "None". Please use additional paper if
more space is needed.)

Please also provide below your employment and other Director/Officer positions

I also agree to report (as soon as practicable) to the ACBDC Board Chairperson in writing of any

situations that may develop in the above areas.

Printed Name:

Signature:

Date



*tBAfiY CG{,}lrlTY 8t}SflrtE$S
DEVELOPMEfi T CORPORATION

s'L ?-ffi#ffi L#;&ffi ffiUeiffi
rrnrAry0rNG rfi Fu& s{Jsfi${'s$ 6fio}fT},

Albany County Business Development Corporation
CODE OF ETHICS

The proper administration of the Al Tech Loan Fund requires its Board Members to be

independent, impartial, and free from conflicts of interest in fulfilling their
responsibilities so that the public will have confidence in the integrity of its decisions.

Therefore, the public interest requires that this code of ethics be adopted
as a standard of conduct.

This code of ethics represents a balancing of the need for eliminating real
conflicts of interest with the recognition that membership in voluntary
organizations devoted to public service is a laudable endeavor that
should be encouraged.

Conflicts of lnterest

No Board member shall engage in any action, which constitutes, or
reasonably gives the appearance of being, a conflict of interest with the
performance of his/her official duties. Without limiting the generality of
the definition of the term conflict of interest, a Board Member shall be

deemed to have a conflict of interest if:

1. The person willfully engages in any business activity or professional

activity or shall have a financial or other private interest, direct or
indirect, or incurs any obligation of any nature, which is in substantial
conflict with the proper discharge of his/her official duties.

2. The person receives or has any financial interest in any sale of any
service or property when such financial interest was received with the
knowledge that the Al Tech Fund intended to finance such property
or obtain such service.

3. The person uses or attempts to use his/her official position to secure

unwarranted privileges or exemptions for himself/herself or others,
including members of his/her family.

A.

B.

A.



4. The person engages in or accepts private employment or engages in

any business transaction or professional activity or makes any
investment which will impair his/her independence of judgment in

the exercise of his/her official duties or will interfere in any manner
whatsoever with the discharge of his/her official duties.

5. The person directly or indirectly solicits any gift or accepts or receives

any gift or favor, whether in the form of money, services, loan, travel,
entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or any other form, from
any person,firm, or corporation as an inducement or to affect
improperly the performance of the official duties or decision of such

Board Member.

6. Any Board Member knowingly has a financial or other private interest
in any legislation or other matters coming before the County
Legislature and knowingly fails to disclose such interest and/or fails to
abstain from voting and/or otherwise officially acting with regard
thereto.

The foregoing acts are listed by the way of example and are by no means

to be deemed all-inclusive. Every committee member shall endeavor to
pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion among the
public that he/she is likely to be engages in acts that are in violation of
his/her trust.

lf any Board Member must recuse himself/herself so as not to violate any

of the enumerated conflicts of interest or for any other reason which may
give rise to a conflict of interest not enumerated or give the appearance
of conflict of interest or impropriety, said Board Member shall recuse

himself/herself by notifying the Board or Board Chairperson.

A- No Board Member shall disclose, without proper authority, confidential
information concerning the property or affairs of the loan fund or loan

fund applicants nor shall he/she use such information to advance the
financial or other private interest of himself/herself or others.

No Board Member shall accept employment or engage in any business or
professional activity which will require his/her to disclose confidential
information which he/she has gained by reason of his/her official position
or authority.

B.

C.

B

Disclosure of Confidential lnformation



AI.BAT*Y SAHFITY BI'$II{88$
DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION

eL Tffi*ffi L.t$_i,,:,,i fqjrufl}
F|NAIVCITVG T0 Fl.fg{. 8U5'|VESS GROWTH

Procurement Guidelines

The Albany County Business Development Corporation (ACBDC) appoints their agent, the
Advance Albany County Alliance, LDC (Alliance), to procure all services and goods as required

and within the following guidelines:

The Alliance as agent for ACBDC will follow their Request for Proposal (RFP) process for the
purchase of goods and supplies on behalf of ACBDC.

The following method of purchase will be used when required by this Policy in order to achieve

the highest savings:

All goods and services will be secured by use of written requests for proposals, written
quotations, verbal quotations, or any other method that assures that goods/services will be

purchased in a competitive manner except for in the following circumstances:

Purchases costing less than SS,000;

S5,ooo-Si-o,ooo Price obtained by 2 verbal quotations

S1o,oo1-S5o,ooo Price obtained by 3 written/fax quotations

550,001 and above Price obtained through issuance of Request For Proposals with
award made by resolution of Board of Director

For all RFP's issued on behalf of ACBDC, the Alliance will collect all responses, compare bid

information and present the results to the ACBDC Board for their selection of provider. lf there

appears to be a conflict of interest a blind report can be prepared for presentation to the
Board.



ALEf,f{Y *SIINTY B$$TH6${$
DEVELOP MET{T CORPORATION

dhil I ffif,;r{ il,{:}e"\i Sl 11, .'.'

fif{rAhl0rllr6 fO FU€f SUSrnt€SS GROWTH

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

PROPERTY DISPOSITION POLICY

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.

A. "Contracting officer" shall mean the officer or employee of the Albany County
Business Development Corporation (hereinafter, the "Corporation") who shall be appointed by

resolution to be responsible for the disposition of property.

B. "Dispose" or "disposal" shall mean transfer of title or any other beneficial interest
in personal or real property in accordance with section 2897 of the New York State Public

Authorities Law.

C. "Property" shall mean personal property in excess of five thousand dollars
(S5,000.00) in value, and real property, and any inchoate or other interest in such property, to
the extent that such interest may be conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an

interest securing a loan or other f inancial obligation of another party.

SECTION 2. DUTIES.

A. The Corporation shall:

(i) maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all

property owned by the Corporation and under its control;

(ii) periodically inventory such property to determine which property shall be

d isposed of ;

(iii) produce a written report of such propercy in accordance with subsection
B herewith; and

(iv) transfer or dispose of such property as promptly and practicably as

possible in accordance with Section 3 below.

B. The Corporation shall:

(i) publish, not less frequentlythan annually, a report listing all real property
owned in fee by the Corporation. Such report shall also consist of a list and

full description of all real and personal property disposed of during such

period. The report shall contain the price received by the Corporation and

the name of the purchaser for all such property sold by the Corporation
during such period; and



(ii) shall deliver copies of such report (via PARIS) to the Comptroller of the
State of New York, Director of the Budget of State of New York,

Commissioner of the New York State Office of General Services, New York
State Legislature (via distribution to the Majority Leader of the Senate and

the Speaker of the Assembly) and the Authorities Budget Office.

SECTION 3. TRANSFER OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY.

A. Supervision and ltreetiqtt Except as otherwise provided herein, the duly

appointed contracting officer (the "Contracting Officer") shall have supervision and direction
over the disposition and sale of property of the Corporation. The Corporation shall have the
right to dispose of its property for any valid corporate purpose.

B. Custodv and Control. The custody and control of Corporation property, pending

its disposition, and the disposal of such property, shall be performed by the Corporation or by

the Commissioner of General Services when so authorized under this section.

C. Method of Disposition. Unless otherwise permitted, the Corporation shall dispose

of property for not less than its fair market value by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit,
or other property, with or without warranty, and upon such otherterms and conditions asthe
Corporation and/or contracting offrcer deems proper. The Corporation may execute such

documents for the transfer of title or other interest in property and take such other action as it
deems necessary or proper to drspose of such property under the provisions of this section.
Provided, however, except in compliance with all applicable law, no disposition of real property,

any interest in real property, or any other property which because of its unique nature is not
subject to fair market pricing shall be made unless an appraisalof the value of such property has

been made by an independent appraiser and included in the record of the transaction.

D. Sales bv the New York State Commissioner of General Services (the

"Commissio ner") When the Corporation shall have deemed that transfer of property by the
Commissioner will be advantageous to the State of New York, the Corporation may enter into an

agreement with the Commissioner pursuant to which the Commissioner may dispose of property
of the Corporation under terms and conditions agreed to by the Corporation and the
Commissioner. ln disposing of any such property, the Commissioner shall be bound by the terms
hereof and references to the contracting officer shall be deemed to refer to such Commissioner.

E. Validity of Deed, Bill of Sale, Lease, or Other lnstrument. A deed , bill of sale, lease,

or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the Corporation, purporting to transfer title or
any other interest in property of the Corporation in accordance herewith shall be conclusive

evidence of compliance with the provisions of these guidelines and all applicable law insofar as

concerns title or other interest of any bona fide grantee or transferee who has given valuable

consideration for such title or other interest and has not received actual or constructive notice
of lack of such compliance prior to closing.



Statement
F. Bids for Disposal: Advertising: Procedure: Disposal bv Neeotiation: Explanatorv

(i) Except as permitted by all applicable law, all disposals or contracts for
disposal of property made or authorized by the Corporation shall be made

after publicly advertising for bids except as provided in subsection (iii) of
this Section F.

(ii) Whenever public advertising for bids is required under subsection (i) of this
Section F:

(A) the advertisement for bids shall be made at such time prior to the
disposal or contract, through such methods, and on such terms and

conditions as shall permit full and free competition consistent with
the value and nature of the property proposed for disposition;

(B) all bids shall be publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in

the advertisement; and

(C) the award shall be made with reasonable promptness by notice to
the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the invitation for
bids, will be most advantageous to the Corporation, price and other
factors considered; provided, that all bids may be rejected at the
Corporation's d iscretion.

(iii) Disposals and contracts for disposal of property may be negotiated or
made by public auction without regard to subsections (i) and (ii) of this
Section F but subject to obtaining such competition as is feasible under the
circumstances, if:

(A) the personal property involved is of a nature and quantity which, if
disposed of under subsections (i) and (ii) of this Section F, would
adversely affect the state or local market for such property, and the
estimated fair market value of such property and other satisfactory
terms of disposalcan be obtained by negotiation;

(B) the fair market value of the property does not exceed fifteen
thousand dollars (S15,000.00);

(C) bid prices after advertising therefore are not reasonable, either as

to all or some part of the property, or have not been independently
arrived at in open competition;

(D) the disposal will be to the state or any political subdivision or public
benefit Corporation, and the estimated fair market value of the
property and other satisfactory terms of disposal are obtained by

negotiation;



(E) the disposal is for an amount less than the estimated fair market
value of the property, the disposal of the property is intended to
further the public health, safety or welfare or an economic
development interest of the Corporation, the state or a political

subdivision (to include but not limited to, the prevention or
remediation of a substantial threat to public health or safety, the
creation or retention of a substantial number of job opportunities,
or the creation or retention of a substantial source of revenues, or
where the Corporation's enabling legislation permits or other
economic development initiatives), the purpose and the terms of
such disposal are documented in writing and approved by

resolution of the board of the Corporation; or

(F) such action is otherwise authorized by law.

(iv) (A) An explanatory statement shall be prepared of the circumstances

of each disposal by negotiation of:

(1) any personal property which has an estimated fair market
value in excess of fifteen thousand dollars (S15,000.00);

(2) any real property that has an estimated fair market value

in excess of one hundred thousand dollars (S100,000.00),

except that any real property disposed of by lease or
exchange shall only be subject to clauses (3) and {a} of this
subparagraph;

(3) any real property disposed of by lease, if the estimated
annual rent over the term of the lease is in excess of fifteen
thousand dollars ($15,000.00).

(4) any real property or real and related personal property
disposed of by exchange, regardless of value, or any
property any part of the consideration for which is real
property.

(B) Each such statement shall be transmitted to the persons entitled to
receive copies of the report required in Section 2.8 (ii) of this Policy

not less than ninety (90) days in advance of such disposal, and a

copy thereof shall be preserved in the files of the Corporation
making such disposal.

This Policy is subject to modification and amendment at the discretion of the Corporation and

shall be filed annually with all local and state agencies as required under all applicable law.



ALBAS{Y *O{,N?Y EUSIf*fiSS
DEVETOP MEilT CORPORATIOFI

et y,ffi#p t_#,s.fq fld_if,i{.}
FJ|IiAHCFJ& rO FUft SU$r'Vg$S S&0WrH

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

PROPERW ACQUTSTTTON POLTCY

SECTION 1.. DEFINITIONS.

(A) "Acquire" or "acquisition" shall mean acquisition of title or any other beneficial
interest in personal or real property.

(B) "Contracting officer" shall mean the officer or employee of Albany County
Business Development Corporation (hereinafter, the "Corporation") who shall be appointed by

resolution to be responsible for the acquisition of property.

(C) "Property" shall mean personal property in excess of five thousand dollars
(SS,OOO.OO) in value, and real property, and any inchoate or other interest in such property, to
the extent that such interest may be conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an

interest securing a loan or other financial obligation of another party.

SECTION 2. DUTIES

(A) The Corporation shall maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability
systems for all property owned by the Corporation and under its control

(B) The Corporation shall prepare, not less frequently than annually, a report listing
all real property owned in fee by the Corporation. Such report shall consist of a list and full
description of all real and personal property acquired of during such period. The report shall

contain the price paid by the Corporation and the name of the seller for all such property
acquired by the Corporation during such period

SECTION 3. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY.

(A) Supervision and Direction. Except as otherwise provided herein, the duly
appointed contracting officer (the "Contracting Officer") shall have supervision and direction
over the acquisition of property of the Corporation. The Corporation shall have the right to
acquire its property for any valid corporate purpose.

(B) Appraisal Report. At independent appraiser shall be hired to provide an opinion
of fair market value before the Corporation shall make an offer with respect to the acquisition of
the property. The appraiser should have a professional affiliation with a national appraisal
organization and must not have an interest in the property (or be retained as an agent to sellthe



property). The appraisal report shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Corporation
and shall be included in the record of the transaction.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the preparation of an appraisal report shall not be

required where the Corporation is acquiring the property pursuant to a donation, or if the
valuation of the property is uncomplicated and the fair market value is reasonably determined
to be less than 525,000.

(c) Method of Acquisition.

(1) Voluntary Acquisition: Unless otherwise permitted by applicable law, the
Corporation shall acquire property for not more than its fair market value by sale, exchange, or
transfer, for cash, credit, or other property, with or without warranty, and upon such other terms
and conditions as the Corporation and/or contracting officer deems proper. The Corporation
may execute such documents for the acquisition of title or other interest in property and take

such otheraction as it deems necessary or properto acquire such property underthe provisions

of this section. Provided, however, the Corporation may acquire property for more than its fair
market value, as described in an appraisal report reviewed by the Corporation or without such

appraisal being conducted, upon a finding pursuant to resolution of the Corporation that the
acquisition of such property at such price is necessary for the Corporation to further its corporate
purpose.

(D) Validitv of Deed, Bill of Sale, Lease, or Other lnstrument. A deed , bill of sale, lease,

or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the seller of the property and accepted by the
Corporation, purporting to transfer title or any other interest in property of the seller to the
Corporation in accordance herewith shall be conclusive evidence of compliance with the
provisions of these guidelines and all applicable law insofar as concerns title or other interest of
any bona fide grantor or transferor who has received valuable consideration for such title or
other interest and has not received actual or constructive notice of lack of such compliance prior
to closing.

(E) lnsurance. The Corporation shall ensure that all insurable real and personal
property under its control is insured against physical loss or damage.

This Policy is subject to modification and amendment at the discretion of the Corporation



RESOLUTION 2022.01.01
OF THE

ALBANY COUNTY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Albany County Business Development Corporation (the

"Corporation") is a "local authority" as defined within the Public Authorities Law ("PAL")

of the State of New York, and as such, the Corporation shall adoption of certain
Corporation policies; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to, and in accordance with PAL, the Corporation has

completed its annual review of the following policies:

Procu rement Guidelines
Property Disposition and Acquisition Policies; and

lnvestment Guidelines.

NOW, THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED, that the above polices/directives

approved by the Corporation.

are

Dated: March 17,2022

Secretary

Seconded by:

Vote

Motion made by:


